
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, 
audio-recorded, photographed or reported 
electronically by the use of social media by anyone 
attending.  This does not apply to any part of the 
meeting that is held in private session. 

Please ask for: 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk 

 
 
         15 October 2024 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COMMUNITY CABINET PANEL to be held on Wednesday 23 October 2024 at 6.00 pm in 
the Council Chamber 
 

 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS  
 

2.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 24th July 2024 
(previously circulated).  
 

3.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 7  
 

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS  
 

5.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to thirty minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions. 
 

6.   PERFORMANCE UPDATE (Pages 3 - 34) 
 

 To Receive a report from the Assistant Director of Leisure, Community and 
Cultural Services.  
 

7.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

Public Document Pack



8.   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Panel is asked to resolve: That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the press and public be now excluded from the meeting for 
item 9 (if any) on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or 
exempt information as defined in Section 100A(3) and Part 1 of Schedule 12A of 
the said Act (as amended). In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the 
exempt information, it is considered that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 

PART 2 
 

9.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors M.Holloway 

F.Marsh 
T.Mitchinson 
L.Musk (Chair) 
 

J.Otumunye 
R.Platt (Vice-Chairman) 
B.Sarson 
 

  
 
 Senior Leadership Team 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk, Governance Services on  or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


 

 

- 1 - 
 

Main author: Joyce Guthrie 
Executive Member Cllr Jane Quinton 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COMMUNITY CABINET PANEL – 23 OCTOBER 2024 
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LEISURE, COMMUNITY AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES) 
 
PERFORMANCE UPDATE 
 
1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update to Members of the Community 
Cabinet Panel on the performance of the Council’s cultural assets, including 
Campus West. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 Members of Community Cabinet Panel are asked to note the content of this 
report. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 This report has been prepared to support the new format of the Community 
Cabinet Panel, which has been established for the 2024-25 municipal year. 
Appendix A provides an overview of performance, enabling Members to carry out 
the following function of Community Cabinet Panel: 

 To monitor the financial performance of Campus West, the Hive and Museum 
Services, with the aim of minimising the public subsidy required to operate the 
service. And; 

 To monitor the effectiveness of Campus West, the Hive, Museum and Leisure  
Services at providing community facilities which are well-regarded and provide a 
diverse range of activities for residents and visitors, generating social value for 
the Borough.   

3.2 As is highlighted in the presentation, visitor numbers for quarter 2 of 2024-25 
were down against the previous year as a result of the good weather and no big 
film releases compared to last year. The new programmes across the service are 
proving popular and has resulted in a positive impact on the service we offer, and 
the feedback from customers. 

3.3 Live events are continuing to prove popular at Campus West with many being 
sold out. As well as generating an income from booking fees and/or venue hire, 
they have provided increased food & beverage sales and additional spend on 
other services. This continues to be a positive area of focus for the team. 

 Implications 

4. Legal Implication(s) 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

 
- 2 - 

 

4.1 There are no legal implications as a result of this report.  

5. Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 Members are asked to note the Q2 financial performance. 

6. Risk Management Implication(s)  

6.1 There is potential for reputational damage if the Council does not remain in a 
compliant position.  

 
7. Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications arising from this report. 

8. Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no procurement implications arising from this report. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no Climate Change implications arising from this report. 

10. Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 There are no HR implications arising from this report. 

11. Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1  There are no Health and Wellbeing implications arising from this report. 

12. Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 The subject of this report is linked to the following Council’s Corporate Priorities; 
Together, create opportunities for our communities, and Run an effective 
Council. 

13. Equalities and Diversity 

13.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

 

Appendix A - Presentation 

 
Name of author: Joyce Guthrie  
Title: Assistant Director (Leisure, Community and Cultural 
Services)                                            
Date: 9th October 2024 

Page 4



Update October 2024

Community 
Cabinet Panel

P
age 5



Campus West 

P
age 6



Campus West            
2024/25 ('£000)

Description Full Year 
Budget

Q2 YTD
Profiled 
Budget 

(Apr - Sept)

Q2 YTD
Actuals

(Apr - Sept)

YTD Variance 
to Profiled 

Budget

Full Year 
Forecast

Full Year 
Forecast 
Variance

Employees 1,005 502 464 (38) 1,009 4
Premises Related 621 353 258 (95) 532 (89)
Supplies and Services 854 427 273 (154) 804 (50)
Third Party Payments 53 27 37 10 65 12
Transport Related 0 0 1 1 2 2
Income (2,035) (1,018) (917) 101 (2,064) (29)
Net Controllable Cost 497 291 116 (176) 347 (150)

Main Variances:
Employee costs – vacancies currently held. Forecast reflects expenditure on agency staff, overtime and 
wages. 
Premises – underspends on utilities (electricity and gas).
Supplies and Services – forecast reflective of the upcoming busy period. 

P
age 7



Description

2023/24 
Q2 YTD
Actuals

(Apr - Sept)

2024/25 
Q2 YTD
Actuals

(Apr - Sept)

Variance

Employees 434 464 30

Premises Related 208 258 50

Supplies and Services 348 273 (75)

Third Party Payments 15 37 22

Transport Related 0 1 1

Income (821) (917) (96)

Net Controllable Cost 182 116 (66)

P
age 8



U
s
a
g
e
 

Ap
ril

Ma
y

Jun
e

Jul
y

Au
gu
st

Se
pte
mb
er

Oc
tob
er

No
ve
mb
er

De
ce
mb
er

Jan
ua
ry

Fe
bru
ary

Ma
rch

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

0 0 0

2,659

11,016

7,259

19,156

9,303
10,892

12,777

17,579

9,6439,787 10,185 9,414
10,625 10,769

4,774

12,186

13

9,251

13,378

8,686
9,839

12,715

8,772
7,194

8,714

12,500

8,849

12,769

Tickets sold

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Includes: cinema, roller city & soft play

P
age 9



Soft Play City Tickets 

Ap
ril

Ma
y

Jun
e

Jul
y

Au
gu
st

Se
pte
mb
er

Oc
tob
er

No
ve
mb
er

De
ce
mb
er

Jan
ua
ry

Fe
bru
ary

Ma
rch

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

4433
4036

3533

4341
4687

4067

5525

4515 4719

5968
6756

1656

3275

2355
1817 2017

3600
2884

3858
3168 3282

4749
4046 3,981

5,771

3,907

2,254
1,926

4,438 4,546

2,781

4,103
3,638

4,534

5,353 5,347

3,9514,214

3,031

2,204

3023 3258 3428

Tickets sold

2019/2020 2022/23 2021/22 2023/24 2024/25

P
age 10



Roller City Tickets 

Ap
ril

Ma
y

Jun
e

Jul
y

Au
gu
st

Se
pte
mb
er

Oc
tob
er

No
ve
mb
er

De
ce
mb
er

Jan
ua
ry

Fe
bru
ary

Ma
rch

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

3,727

2,314

1,380
1,853

3,417

1,300

2,386
1,893

2,657

3,540

5,125

1,291

2,909

1,428 1,206 1,361
1,924

1,400

2,274

1,383

2,140
2,399

2,678

1,864

4,126

2,256

1,490 1334
1608

2793

1433

2405

1362

2592
2125

3,388

2,267
2,783

1,545
1,008 1185

2306

1403

Tickets sold

2019/20 2022/23 2021/22 2023/24 2024/25

P
age 11



Cinema Tickets

Ap
ril

Ma
y

Jun
e

Jul
y

Au
gu
st

Se
pte
mb
er

Oc
tob
er

No
ve
mb
er

De
ce
mb
er

Jan
ua
ry

Fe
bru
ary

Ma
rch

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

12,347

10,745

9,088

11,860
10,423

8,413

11,459
10,336 10,836

15,018
14,053

2,980

6,213 6,402 6,391
7,193

5,245
4,490

6,054
4,997

3,829

6,230 5,602

3,994

7,682
6,552

5,028
3934

11,015

8,462

4,500
5,992

3,849

5,643

7,293 7,618

4,837
6,225

5,006
3,652

5418

7217

4630

Tickets sold

2019/2020 2022/23 2021/22 2023/24 2024/25

No blockbuster films 
in 2024 Q2 compared 
to Barbie and 
Oppenheimer last 
year

P
age 12



Food and Beverage Sales

Ap
ril

Ma
y

Jun
e

Jul
y

Au
gu
st

Se
pte
mb
er

Oc
tob
er

No
ve
mb
er

De
ce
mb
er

Jan
ua
ry

Fe
bru
ary

Ma
rch

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

32,362 29,117 27,546
33,791 32,156

27,425

37,876
30,930

66,665

43,776
39,516 38,01438,868

30,971 27,812

55,120

45,997

28,731

39,410
34,602

83,901

47,131
55,449

42,948
46,893

39,152
34,293 35,358 37,189 34,734

Income

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

P
age 13



Live on Stage

Ap
ril

Ma
y

Jun
e

Jul
y

Au
gu
st

Se
pte
mb
er

Oc
tob
er

No
ve
mb
er

De
ce
mb
er

Jan
ua
ry

Fe
bru
ary

Ma
rch

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400
1,321

1,221 1,235

832

151

606

Attendances

2024/25

P
age 14



• Tickets now on sale.

• Sales are on target to exceed last 
years outturn

Sleeping Beauty 9 Dec 2024- 8 Jan 2025
Pantomime 

P
age 15



In the next month 

P
age 16



Coming in 2025 

P
age 17



Mill Green Museum and 
Roman Baths

P
age 18



Museums (Mill Green & Roman Bath House)         
2024/25 ('£000)

Description Full Year 
Budget

Q2 YTD
Profiled 
Budget 

(Apr - Sept)

Q2 YTD
Actuals

(Apr - Sept)

YTD Variance 
to Profiled 

Budget

Full Year 
Forecast

Full Year 
Forecast 
Variance

Employees 221 111 108 (3) 197 (24)
Premises Related 55 28 (4) (32) 26 (29)
Supplies and Services 28 14 19 5 29 1
Third Party Payments 2 1 1 (0) 2 0
Transport Related 0 0 0 0 0 0
Income (83) (41) (49) (7) (82) 1
Net Controllable Cost 224 113 75 (37) 173 (51)

Main Variances:
Employees – reflects vacancies currently held. 
Premises – variance reflects large NNDR credit received, following updated valuation. 

P
age 19



Description

2023/24 
Q2 YTD
Actuals

(Apr - Sept)

2024/25 
Q2 YTD
Actuals

(Apr - Sept)

Variance

Employees 98 108 9

Premises Related 21 (4) (25)

Supplies and Services 13 19 7

Third Party Payments (0) 1 1

Transport Related 0 0 0

Income (29) (49) (19)

Net Controllable Cost 102 75 (27)

P
age 20



M
i
l
l
 
G
r
e
e
n
 
V
i
s
i
t
s

Ap
ril

Ma
y

Jun
e

Jul
y

Au
gu
st

Se
pte
mb
er

Oc
tob
er

No
ve
mb
er

De
ce
mb
er

Jan
ua
ry

Fe
bru
ary

Ma
rch

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

419 423

826

362

541

316

478

255

868

0

361 369

640

365

618

368

1153

356

603

134

1389

263

453 473 480

1485

1111

Public Visits

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

P
age 21



R
o
m
a
n
 
B
a
t
h
 
V
i
s
i
t
s

Ap
ril

Ma
y

Jun
e

Jul
y

Au
gu
st

Se
pte
mb
er

Oc
tob
er

No
ve
mb
er

De
ce
mb
er

Jan
ua
ry

Fe
bru
ary

Ma
rch

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

231

151
101

257

576

169

358

136

0 0

345

144

222

128
79

202

433

280 262

51
0

204

Public visits

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Roman Bath Visits

P
age 22



M
i
l
l
 
G
r
e
e
n
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
 
V
i
s
i
t
s

Ap
ril

Ma
y

Jun
e

Jul
y

Au
gu
st

Se
pte
mb
er

Oc
tob
er

No
ve
mb
er

De
ce
mb
er

Jan
ua
ry

Fe
bru
ary

Ma
rch

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

174

365

49
66

89

312

29
0 0

260
298

0

156
139

242

53

0
28

School Visits

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

P
age 23



The Hive

P
age 24



Community Centres        
2024/25 ('£000)

Description Full Year 
Budget

Q2 YTD
Profiled 
Budget 

(Apr - Sept)

Q2 YTD
Actuals

(Apr - Sept)

YTD Variance 
to Profiled 

Budget

Full Year 
Forecast

Full Year 
Forecast 
Variance

Employees 281 140 112 (28) 231 (50)
Premises Related 251 195 (466) (661) (394) (645)
Supplies and Services 64 32 65 33 93 29
Third Party Payments 61 31 112 81 141 80
Transport Related 0 0 0 0 0 0
Income (409) (204) (207) (2) (392) 17
Net Controllable Cost 249 194 (383) (577) (321) (570)

Main Variances:
Supplies and services – consultancy fees in relation to business rates appeal.
Premises related – large NNDR credit processed, due to a backdated transitional premium awarded.
Third Party Payments – reflects agency cost incurred on a Duty Manager Post at The Hive. This is partially 
offset by the underspend on employee costs.  

P
age 25



Description

2023/24 
Q2 YTD
Actuals

(Apr - Sept)

2024/25 
Q2 YTD
Actuals

(Apr - Sept)

Variance

Employees 112 112 0

Premises Related 169 (466) (635)

Supplies and Services 46 65 19

Third Party Payments 61 112 50

Transport Related 0 0 0

Income (219) (207) 12

Net Controllable Cost 170 (383) (553)

P
age 26



F
r
e
d
d
i
e
s
 
D
e
n

Ap
ril

Ma
y

Jun
e

Jul
y

Au
gu
st

Se
pte
mb
er

Oc
tob
er

No
ve
mb
er

De
ce
mb
er

Jan
ua
ry

Fe
bru
ary

Ma
rch

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

733 765

418

656
765

593
685

476

710

927 886

601

1201
1114

1032
919

683 661
602

278

589

 Visits

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Freddies Den Admissions

P
age 27



Leisure Centres 

P
age 28



Leisure usage 

Ap
ril

Ma
y

Jun
e

Jul
y

Au
gu
st

Se
pte
mb
er

Oc
tob
er

No
ve
mb
er

De
ce
mb
er

Jan
ua
ry

Fe
bru
ary

Ma
rch

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

45,000

10,622

20,654 21,556
23,425

29,777

25,592
23,089

17,570 17,026
19,185 19,46619,761

21,512 22,715 23,652

31,362 31,677
28,006

23,923
21,974 20,657 21,276 21,75022,029

26,578
28,139

32,581 34,049

39,799

33,876

29,141
27,428

21,702

27,750
25,62324,44124,973

26,682

35,734
32,512 33,064

27,189

21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25

P
age 29



Hatfield Leisure Centre

Ap
ril

Ma
y

Jun
e

Jul
y

Au
gu
st

Se
pte
mb
er

Oc
tob
er

No
ve
mb
er

De
ce
mb
er

Jan
ua
ry

Fe
bru
ary

Ma
rch

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

2,620

5,605 5,874 6,053

7,895

6,245 6,015 5,892
5,315 5,603 5,750 5,8365,874 5,912 5,989

7,895 7,973

7,125

5,883 5,892
5,485

5,959 6,012 6,1816221 6523 6781 6952

8080

7122 7256 7331

5,681

7136

6006

5,235
5847 6147

7048

6,166 5,927 5984

21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25

P
age 30



Ap
ril

Ma
y

Jun
e

Jul
y

Au
gu
st

Se
pte
mb
er

Oc
tob
er

No
ve
mb
er

De
ce
mb
er

Jan
ua
ry

Fe
bru
ary

Ma
rch

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

20,000

5,128

11,756 11,738
11,956

14,539
13,117 12,589

8,562 9,214
10,735 10,98811,11911,756 11,956

12,196

14,539
14,829

12,604
12,982

12,995 12,785
11,999 12,12411,952

12,652 13,151
14,051

15,738
17,159

15,989 16,222 16,289

13,107

17,657
15,97416,016

14,182

17,638

14,157 14,281 14,329

21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25

Hatfield Swim Centre

P
age 31



Panshanger Golf

Ap
ril

Ma
y

Jun
e

Jul
y

Au
gu
st

Se
pte
mb
er

Oc
tob
er

No
ve
mb
er

De
ce
mb
er

Jan
ua
ry

Fe
bru
ary

Ma
rch

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

5,000

2,506
2,801 2,898

3,215
3,408

3,024 2,861

2,264

1,815

2,847 2,728 2,768
2,506

2,801 2,898

3,408 3,247
2,922

2,582

1457

1000
1388

2114
1,891

3,225
3,567 3,717

4,064 4,060

3,319

2,885

1,498 1,435 1,299

1,972 1,962

1,527

2,879

3,419

4,398 4,297

3,841

21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25

P
age 32



Hatfield Christmas Lights
•Hatfield Christmas Lights will be taking place on Saturday 23rd 
November. 
•The event will be held just in White Lion Square this year from 2-6pm, 
•The event is being organised by WHBC staff and events company 
Rockitfish. 
•Shop Window display competition, to encourage the local shop windows 
to create Christmas window displays.
•Performers include Electric Umbrella, and local singer Daisy Pringle. 
•This year will be a large focus on lights, as we will have a considerable 
amount more than last year.

P
age 33



Community Awards
 Community Awards will be taking place on Wednesday 26th 
February at Campus West.

• Nominations are now live.

P
age 34


	Agenda
	6 Performance Update
	CCP October 24


